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THOMAS A. SAENZ, CA SBN 159430

VICTOR VIRAMONTES, CA SBN 214158 | DISTRICT OF ARIZONA
SHAHEENA AHMAD SIMONS, CA SBN 225520 ~ DEPUTY

Mexican American Legal Defense
and Educational Fun

634 S. Spring Street, 11th Floor

Los Angeles, CA 90014

Phone: (213) 629-2512

Fax: (213) 629-0266

DAVID F. GOMEZ, SBN 006790
MICHAEL J. PETITTI JR., SBN 011667
Gomez & Petitti

2525 East Camelback Road

Suite 860 Phoenix, Arizona 85016

- Phone: %602 957-8686

602) 956-9854
Attorneys for Plaintiffs

Fax:

RLED LODGED

____RECEWVED >< COoPY
NOV 1 2 2004
CLERK U S DISTRICT COURT

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF ARIZONA

DAVID M. RODRIGUEZ, JUDY
GONZALES POGGI, JOSE ,
MENDOZA FRANK RIVERA

UEZADA, and ESTHER
ANAYA ARCIA, on behalf of
themselves and all others smnlarly
situated,

Plaintiffs,

V.

MARICOPA COUNTY COMMUNITY
COLLEGE DISTRICT, THE
GOVERNING BOARD OF THE
MARICOPA COUNTY COMMUNITY
COLLEGE DISTRICT, RUFUS
GLASPER, in his official and individual
capacity, and PHILLIP RANDOLPH, in
his official and individual capacity,

Defendants.

CV04 2510

No. CV-

CLASS COMPLAINT FOR
INJUNCTIVE AND
DECLARATORY RELIEF

AND DAMAGES FOR
VIOLATION OF TITLE VI

OF THE CIVIL RIGHTS ACT
OF 1964, 42 U.S.C. § 2000E;
zltgagsd § 1981; and 42 U.S.C. §.

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL
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Individual and Representative Plaintiffs David Rodriguez, Judy Gonzales
Poggi, Jose Mendoza, Frank Rivera, Mario Quezada, and Esther Anaya-Garcia

(collectively “Plaintiffs”), on behalf of themselves and all others siinjlarly situated,

allege as follows:

JURISDICTION, VENUE, AND EXHAUSTION OF
ADMINISTRATIVE REMEDIES

1. This Court has jurisdiction over this action under 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331
and 1343, as well as Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 42
U.S.C. § 2000e-5(5)(3). |

2. Venue is proper in this District under 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b). All of fhe
Individual Plaintiffs reside in this District, and Maricopa County Community
College District (“MCCCD”), a Defendant in this action, is also located within this

District. The acts complained of occurred in this District and gave rise to the

claims alleged.
3. Each representative Plaintiff has exhausted his or her administrative

remedies by timely filing a charge of discrimination with the Equal Employment
Opportunity Commission (“EEOC”). On or about January 9, 2004, David
Rodriguez, Judy Gonzales Poggi, Jose Mendoza, Frank Rivera, Mario Quezada,
and Esther Anaya-Garcia filed charges of discrimination with the EEOC. After
investigation, the EEOC issued each Plaintiff a Letter of Determination finding that
there exists “reasonable cause to believe that [MCCCD] violated Title VII by
harassing Charging Party and a class of employees, because of their national origin,
race, religion, and sex.” A copy of the EEOC Letter of Determinaﬁon 1ssued to
Plaintiff Judy Gonzales Poggi is attached as Exhibit A and incorporated by
reference. On or about August 18, 2004, the EEOC issued to each Plaintiff a
notice of right to sue.
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PARTIES
4. Plaintiff David Rodriguez is a resident of Phoenix, Arizona and a
Librarian at Glendale Community College. He has been emplbyed by Defendant
MCCCD for approximately 18 years. Mr. Rodriguez, who is Latino, has been
subjected by his employer to a hostile work environment on account of his race,

color, and/or national origin.
5. Plaintiff Judy Gonzales Poggi is a resident of Glendale, Arizona and a

faculty member in the Early Childhood and Family Studies Departmenf at Glendale
Community College, which is within the MCCCD. She has been employed by
Defendant MCCCD for approximately 6 years. Ms. ‘Poggi, who 1s Latina, has been
subjected by her employer to a hostile work environment on account of her race,
color, and/or national origin. |

6. Plaintiff Jose Mendoza is a resident of Peoria, Arizona and

Coordinator for Mulﬁcdtﬁral Affairs at Glendale Community College. He has
been employed by Defendant MCCCD for approximately 27 years. Mr. Mendoza,
who is Latino, has been subjected by his employer to a hostile work environmént

on account of his race, color, and/or national origin.
7. Plaintiff Frank Rivera is a resident of Glendale, Arizona and a faculty

member in the Mathematics Department at Glendale Community College. He has
been employed by Defendant MCCCD for approximately 10 years. Mr. Rivera,
who is Latino, has been subjected by his employer to a hostile work environment
on account of his race, color, and/or national origin. V

-~ 8. Plaintiff Mario Quezadais a resident of Phoenix, Arizona and a
Custodian at Glendale Community College. He has been employed by Defendant
MCCCD for approximately 15 years. Mr. Quezada, who is Latino, has been
subjected by his employer to a hostile work environment on account of his race,
color, and/or national origin.
i




9.  Plaintiff Esther Anaya-Garcia is a resident of Glendale, Arizona and a
Student Services Specialist in the Center for Learning Department at Glendale
Community College. She has been employed by Defendant MCCCD for
approximately 27 years. Ms. Anaya-Garcia, who i8 Latina, has been subjected by
her employer to a hostile work environment on account of her race, color, and/or
national origin.

10. Defendant MCCCD is a public educational institution funded
by the State of Arizona and located throughout Maricopa County. The system is
comprised of two skill centers and 10 cblleges, including Glendale Community

College at which the six individual Plaintiffs are employed.

11.  Defendant Governing Board of the Maricopa County Community
College District (“Géveming Board”) is the governing board of the MCCCD.

12.  Defendant Rufus Glasper is the Chancellor of the MCCCD. Acting in
his official and individual capacity, Defendant Glasper subjected Plaintiffs, and a
class of similarly situated employees, to a hostile work environment.

13. Defendant Phillip Randolph is the President of the Glendale

Community College. Acting in his individual and official capacity, Defendant

Randolph subjected Plaintiffs, and a class of similarly situated employees, to a

hostile work environment.
FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

14.  Plaintiffs are Latino faculty and staff at Glendale Community
College, a part of MCCCD. Each Plaintiff is an employee of Defendant MCCCD.

15.  Beginning in or around October 2003, Plaintiffs were subjected to
repeated, unwanted racial harassment by a white co-worker named Walter
Kehowski, a faculty member in the Mathematics Department at Glendale
Community College and an employee of Defendant MCCCD.

16. Beginning in or around October 2003, Mr. Kehowski has repeatedly
transmitted harassing e-mails to Plaintiffs through the e-mail system operated by

3
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Defendant MCCCD — specifically, through a “listserv”’ maintained by Defendant
MCCCD for use by its employees and for the purpose of communicating business

and educational needs. _
17.  The e-mails transmitted by Mr. Kehowski have, among other ﬂ]j_ngs,

denounced “multiculturalism” and “d-d-d-diversity,” and encouraged recipients to
“acknowledge and celebrate the superiority of Western Civilization.” These e-mails
also contained excerpts from and links to articles denigrating Latinos, immigrants,
and other minority groups, with such titles as “California’s Being Invaded, Too —
By Hispanic Holidays,” and “On Columbus Day, Celebrate Westem Civilization,
Not Multiculturalism.”

18.  Defendant MCCCD’s internet web page also links to a web page
maintained by Mr. Kehowski and containing links to material disparaging Latinos
and immigrants, and extolling the superiority of “Western civilization.” The EEOC,
m the Letter of Détermjnaﬁon it issued to each representative Plamtiff, described
Mr. Kehowski’s website as containigg “hundreds of e-mails links relating to racial
hatred, intimidation, and supremacy. Titles of some links include: Mexicans Think
U.S. Belongs to Them!, Mexican Double Standard, and American Patrol (Scourge
of Mecha).” |

19.  Plamtiffs, students, and other employees complained directly to
officials at Defendant MCCCD, including Defendants Glasper and Randolph,
regarding the disparaging emails, links, and webpage. Plamtiffs informed MCCCD
officials that Mr. Kehowski had transmitted material that was disparaging to
Latinos, that Plaintiffs perceived the communications as abusive and threatening,
arid that the material was contributing to a racially charged employment aﬁndsphere.

20. Défendant MCCCD, Defendant Board of Governors, Defendant
Glasper, and Defendant Randolph failed to take immediate or appropriate steps to
prevent Mr. Kehowski from sending Plaintiffs harassing e-mails and to cease

i




O 00 N oy AW R

R S R e O SR COR SO

maintaining a hink to his'Webpage on the MCCCD website. Indeed, Defendants
permitted the racial harassment to continue despite notice of the circumstances.

21.  The EEOC, in its Letter of Determination to Plaintiffs, found that
Defendant MCCCD “‘was fully aware that the e-mail, along with its own website,
were the avenues used by the white staff member to make disparaging comments
against Hispanics. The website also contained many links and references to
religious, racial and sex-based hatred, intimidation, and supremacy that are patently
offensive. Moreover, after [MCCCD] received complaints from employees |
regarding the offensive e-mail and website, it failed to take appropriate action and
fhe hostile work environment continued.”

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS |

22.  Plaintiffs bring this Class Action under Fed. R.Civ.P. 23(a),

(b)(2), and (b)(3) on behalf of a class of all paét, present, and future Latino
employees of MCCCD who have been, continue to be, or in the future may be
subjected to a hostile work environment on acoounf of their race, color, and/or
national origin.

23.  Plaintiffs are members of the class they seek to represent.

24. The mémbers of the proposed class are so numerous that joinder of all
members is impracticable. The number of class members is currently
indeterminate, but certainly larger than can feésibly be addressed by joinder.

25.  There are questions of law and fact common to the class, and these
questions predominate over any questions affecting only individual members.
Common questions include, among others, 1) whether the disparaging comments
and e-mails directed toward Plaintiff class, and Defendants’ willingness to permit
that harassment continue, constitute a hostile work environment; 2) whether
Defendant MCCCD’s and Defendant Board of Governors’ conduct violates Title
VII; 3) whether Defendants’ conduct violates 42 U.S.C. § 1981; 4) whether
Defendants’ conduct violates 42 U.S.C. § 1983; and 5) whether compensatory and

5
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punitive damages, injunctive relief, and other equitable remedies for the class are

warranted.

26.  The representative Plaintiffs’ claims are typical of the claims of the
class.

27.  The representative Plaintiffs will fairly and adequately represent and

protect the interests of the members of the class. Plaintiffs have retained counsel

_competent and experienced in class actions and in employment discrimination

Iitigation.

28.  Class certification is appropriate under Fed.R.Civ.P. 23(b)(2)
because Defendants have acted and/or refused to act on grounds generally
applicable to the class, making appropriate declaratory and injunctive relief with
respect to the Plaintiffs and the class as a whole. |

29.  Class certification is also appropriate under Fed.R.Civ.P.

23(b)(3) because common questions of law and fact predominate over any

questions affecting only individual members of the class, and because a class

action is superior to other available methods for the fair and efficient adjudication

of this dispute.

FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(42 U.S.C. § 2000 ef seq)

30.  Plaimntiffs incorporate paragraphs 1 through 29 as alleged above.

31.  This claim is brought by all representative Plaintiffs on
behalf of themselves and the Class they represent.

32.  The conduct to which Plaintiffs have been subjected is sufficiently
pervasive and severe as to alter conditions of employment and to create a hostile or

abusive work environment.
33.  Despite having notice of the harassment to which Plaintiffs have been
subjected, Defendant MCCCD and Defendant Board of Govemors have not taken

appropriate steps to prevent the hostile work environment from persisting.

6
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34,  Asnoted above, the EEOC has determined that there is “reasonable
cause to believe that [MCCCD] violated Title VII by harassing Charging Party and
a class of employees, because of their national origin, race, religion, and sex.”

35.  Plaintiffs request relief as set forth below.

SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(42 U.S.C. §1981; and 42 U.S.C. § 1983)

36.  Plamtiffs incorporate paragraphs 1 through 35 as alleged above.

37.  This claim is brought by all representative Plaintiffs on
behalf of themselves and the Class they represent.

- 38 Defendants MCCCD and Board of Governors violated the federal
statutory and constitutional rights of the Plaintiffs and class members to be free
from discrimination in the Workpiace.

39.  Defendants Gleisper and Randolph, acting in their official and
mdividual capacities, violated the federal statutory and constitutional rights of the
Plamtiffs and class members to be free from discrimination in the workplace.

40.  Plaintiffs request relief as set forth below. _

| ALLEGATIONS REGARDING RELIEF

41. Plamtlffs have no plain, adequate, or complete remedy at law to

redress the wrongs alleged above, and the injunctive relief sought in this action is

the only means of securing complete and adequate relief. Plaintiffs are now

-suffering and will continue to suffer irreparable injury from Defendants’

discriminatory acts and omissions.
42.  Plamntiffs have suffered and continue to suffer humiliation,
embarrassment, and anguish, all to their damage in an amount according to proof.
N PRAYER FOR RELIEF
Plaintiffs and the class pray for relief as follows:

43.  Certification of the case as a class action on behalf of the proposed

class;
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44.  Designation of David Rodriguez, Judy Gonzales Poggi, Jose
Mendoza, Frank Rivera, Mario Quezada, and Esther Anaya-Garcia as
representatives of the class;

45.  Designation of Representative Plamntiffs’ counsel of record as class

counsel;
46. A declaratory judgment that the conduct described above is unlawful
under Title VII, 42 U.S.C. 1981, and 42 U.S.C. 1983; '

47. A preliminary and permanent injunction against Defendants,
preventing district employees from disseminating racially disparaging material
through its website and email system.

48.  An order that Defendants shall enforce a policy preventing district

employees from disseminating racially harassing material through its website and

email system.
49.  All damages sustained as a result of Defendants’ conduct, including

emotional distress, humiliation, and anguish, according to proof;
50. Costs, including reasonable attorney’s fees;

51.  Such other and further legal and equitable relief as the Court deems

necessary, just, and proper.

Dated: Npwemdrtr 12, 2004 Respectfully submitted,

MEXICAN AMERICAN LEGAL DEFENSE
AND EDUCATIONAL FUND

GOMEZ & PETITTI

By: OOCUA»—J\?: M

David F. Gomez

Attorneys for Plaintiffs.
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U.S. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY COMMISSION

- Phoenix District Office - 3300'N. Central Avenue, Suite 690
Phoenix, AZ 85012-2504

(602) 640-5000

TTY (602) 640-5072

FAX (602) 640-5071

Charge No. 350-2004-01278

Ms. Judy G. Poggi

4434 W.Fallen LeafTane ~  Charging Party

Glendale, AZ 85310

Maricopa Community College District .

2411 W. 14™, Street Respondent

Tempe, AZ 85281 : '
DETERMINATION

Tissue the following determination on the merits of this charge.

Respondent is an employer within the meaning of Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as
'amg:ndéd (“Title VII”), 42 U.S.C. § 2000e, et seq. Timeliness and all other requirements for
coverage have been met.

Charging Party alleged that .ch_er the last sex}s;al months she was _i‘epeatedly subjected to unlawful

- harassment by a white co-worker. The behavior included both inappropriate comments and
email. Also, that after complaints were made to management in October 2003, regarding the

inappropriate conduct, no action was taken and the hostile work environment continued.

Respondent contends that it was required to allow the white faculty member to exercise his right
to free expression on an email system that has become a limited open forum, but that Respondent
has properly reflected its disagreement with both how the faculty member uses its email and his
position. ) : :

Evidence reveals the following. In October 2003, a white faculty member of the math department
sent to all district employees email which contained disparaging comments and internet links
regarding Hispanics and other protected groups. In its response to staff complaints, Respondent
informed employees that while the major purpose of its email system is for communication
related to business and educational needs, the openness of the system also allows individuals to
express opinions on almost any subject. Evidence further shows that Respondent’s internet web
page allows a connection to the white faculty member’s web page which contains hundreds of
internet links relating to racial hétred, intimidation, and supremacy. Titles of some links include;
Mexicans Think U.S. Belongs to Them!, Mexican Double Standard, and American Patrol

(Scourge of Mecha).



Like and related, and growing out of the Commission’s investigation, the evidence also shows
that the internet links that were referenced in the email were links that could also be connected
from Respondent’s website. These links included commentary and titles which would reasonably
be offensive to females, as well as a persons race or religion. Links titled; Why Islam Hates
Democracy, Islam's Threat to the West, Why White (and other) Women Can't J ump A Facelift
for Title IX, Multiracialist chickens come home—but not to roost, and Segregation Now,

Segregation Tomorrow, Segregation Forever.

The Commission has previously determined that national origin harassment violates Title VII
when it is so severe or pervasive that the individual being harassed reasonably finds the work

environment to be hostile or abusive. Harassment based on national origin includes offensive

conduct directed towards an employee’s birthplace, ethnicity, or culture. Factors iri creating a
hostile work environment may include whether the conduct was physically threatening or
intimidating, whether the conduct was hostile and/or patently offensive, and whether
management responded appropriately when it learned of the harassment. In this case,
Respondent was fully aware that the email, along with its own website, were the avenues used by
the white staff member to make disparaging comments against Hispanics. The website also
contained many links and references to religious, racial, and sex based hatred, intimidation and

. supremacy that are patently offensive. Moreover, after Respondent received complaints from

employee’s regarding the offensive email and website, it failed to take appropriate action and the
hostile work environment continued.

Accordingly, I find reasonable cause to believe that Respondent violated Title VII by harassing
Charging Party and a class of employees, because of their national origin, race, religion, and sex.

Upon finding that there is reason to believe that violations have occurred, the Commission
attempts to eliminate the alleged unlawful practices by informal methods of conciliation.
Therefore, the Commission now invites the parties to join'with it in reaching a just resolution of
this matter. The confidentiality provisions of Title VII 'and Commission Regulation apply to
information obtained during conciliation. -

- If the reéspondent declines to discuss settlement or when, for any other reason, a settlement

acceptable to the office Director is not obtained, the Director will inform the parties and advise
them of the court enforcement alternatives available to aggrieved persons and the Commission.
A Commission representative will contact each party in the near future to begin conciliation.

On Behalf of the Commission:

APR28 2004 | M\%M

Date ' Susan L. Grace
Acting District Director




